
  
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2012 
8:00 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:00 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

July 24, 2012, Regular Meeting 
July 24, 2012, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 7, 2012 AGENDA  13 
8:05 4  PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 
MR. JEFF VIRGINIA 15 

8:10 5  MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. Award of Architectural Services for Aquatic Center 

Repair Project 
B. Change Order Request for Demolition of the Old 

High School 

MR. ROBERT MARSH  
139 

 
159 

8:15 6  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 
C. Annual Settlement of Tax Collector 
D. Oath to Collect Taxes  

MR. KELVIN BYRD  
167 
169 
171 
225 

8:20 7  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Clarification of EMS Advisory Committee 

Appointments 
B. Appointment of Voting Delegate at the North Carolina 

Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) 
Annual Conference 

C. Boards & Commissions 
D. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
227 

 
229 

 
231 

 
235 

8:25 8  PUBLIC COMMENT  249 
9:25 9  BREAK  249 
9:30 10  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143.-318.11(a)(6) 

 249 

 9:45 11  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
July 24, 2012, Regular Meeting 
July 24, 2012, Closed Session 
 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JULY 24, 2012 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
July 24, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
[Commissioners Deal and Futrelle were absent due to prior commitments.] 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:33 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the June 19, 2012, regular meeting and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Chairman Miller stated that he had abstained from the following motion and requested the 
minutes reflect such: 
 

“Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the transfers of properties 
from the Stewart Simmons Fire District to the Deep Gap Fire District, from the Meat Camp Fire District 
to the Deep Gap Fire District, and from the Deep Gap Fire District to the Meat Camp Fire District as 
presented.” 
 

Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the June 19, 2012, 
regular meeting minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
Chairman Miller tabled consideration of the June 19, 2012, closed session minutes until after 
closed session to allow time for review of proposed amendments. 
 

DRAFT 
080712 BCC Meeting

2



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the July 24, 2012, agenda. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the July 24, 2012, 
agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE PROPOSED LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH 
SMITH, RODGERS & STRICKLAND (SR&S) 
On behalf of the Sheriff who had a prior commitment, County Manager Geouque presented a 
contract for legal services to be provided to the Sheriff’s Office by Smith, Rodgers & Strickland 
(SR&S) in addition to the services provided by the County Attorney.  According to the Sheriff, 
SR&S had provided timely information, opinions and in-service training to his Office in the past 
and funds were budgeted to cover the expense. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the necessity of paying for additional legal services above and 
beyond those paid to the County Attorney.  Vice-Chairman Gable stated that legal services for a 
law enforcement agency were often intense and needed to be readily available when requested. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that he was comfortable and available to handle legal issues as 
they arose from the Sheriff’s Office; however he would support a decision to utilize SR&S’s 
services as well. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to utilize the County Attorney 
for legal services needed by the Sheriff’s Office and revisit the issue in the future if needed. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

HUNGER AND HEALTH COALITION PAVING REQUEST 
Ms. Jean Brooks, Chair of the Hunger and Health Coalition Board of Directors, requested the 
County, as owner of the old health department property, repair Health Center Drive which 
services the Hunger and Health Coalition, Caldwell Community College, and the non-profit 
agencies that sub-lease space from the Coalition in the Hannah Building. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that, in November 2011, Ms. Compton Fortuna, Executive 
Director of the Coalition, had made similar request with an estimate submitted to repave the road 
in the amount of $17,335 which included $2,860 for pothole repair.  The County leased the 
property to the Hunger and Health Coalition at a rate of $1 per year with the Coalition 

080712 BCC Meeting

3



responsible for maintenance and repairs.  The County did provide property and liability and 
flood insurance for the facility. 
 
After discussion was held, Ms. Brooks stated that the Coalition would bring a more detailed 
request with updated estimates to the Board at a future meeting.  

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

A.  Proposed NC Rural Center Grant Application 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, presented a request to submit a grant 
application to the NC Rural Economic Development Center on behalf of Mr. Sean Spiegelman, 
owner of Appalachian Mountain Brewery (AMB), for funding in the amount of $80,000 from the 
Building Reuse and Restoration Program.  The funds would be used to renovate the building 
located at 163 Boone Creek Drive which will be AMB’s facility.  Mr. Furman stated that this 
was the same grant program that was utilized by Aaron’s located on Highway 105 Extension.  
That grant was successfully closed-out upon completion of all terms being met. 
 
AMB committed, through the grant application, to the creation and maintenance of 10 jobs and 
to providing to the County the funds for the required 5% ($4,000) cash match.  Chairman Miller 
requested assurance that AMB and/or the owners would be responsible for the repayment of any 
grants funds that may be required due to the failure to meet the grant commitments as stated.  
The application deadline was August 24, 2012, with notices of award to be made by October 15, 
2012. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to authorize the submission of the 
grant application to the NC Rural Economic Development Center on behalf of Appalachian 
Mountain Brewery in the amount of $80,000 contingent upon Appalachian Mountain Brewery 
providing to the County the funds for the required $4,000 cash match and contingent upon the 
County Attorney’s review of the application. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Miller, Gable) 
 Nay-1(Blust) 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

B. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Program Matters 
1.  2009 Program Close Out Public Hearing Request 
2.  2012 Program Public Hearing Request 

 
Mr. Furman requested the Board schedule two required public hearings on August 21, 2012, as 
associated with the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing 
Program (SSHP).  The first would allow citizen comment regarding the closeout of the current 
2009 Scattered Site Housing Program (SSHP).  The second was required to begin the process of 

080712 BCC Meeting

4



the 2012 Scattered Site Housing Program (SSHP).  Applications for the 2012 Program were due 
October 17, 2012. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to schedule a public hearing at 
6:00 P.M. on August 21, 2012, to allow citizen comment on the closeout of the Community 
Development Block Grant 2009 Scattered Site Housing Program.  
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to schedule a public hearing at 
6:00 P.M. on August 21, 2012, to allow citizen comment regarding the start-up of the 
Community Development Block Grant 2012 Scattered Site Housing Program.  
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

B. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Program Matters 
3.  2012 Program Proposed Committee Appointments 

 
Mr. Furman stated that the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site 
Housing Program (SSHP) required the County to appoint a committee to help establish polices 
and select the recipients for housing assistance through the program.  The 2009 Scattered Site 
Housing Program Committee consisted of: 
 

Jim Atkinson Director, Watauga County Department of Social Services 
Scott Eggers Watauga Community Housing Trust Fund 
Margie Mansure NC Cooperative Extension (Watauga County) 
Compton Fortuna Director, Watauga County Hunger and Health Coalition 
Kevin Rothrock Planner, Town of Blowing Rock 
Angie Boitnotte Director, Watauga County Project on Aging 
Andy Blethen Environmental Health Director, App. Dist. Health Dept. 
Loretta Clawson Mayor, Town of Boone 
Angela Miller Director, W.A.M.Y. Community Action 
Tony Caito Director, Watauga County Habitat for Humanity 
Danny Staley Director, Appalachian District Health Department 

 
Mr. Furman stated that neither Ms. Miller, Mr. Caito, nor Mr. Staley were currently with the 
organizations as listed and further stated that the appointments to the 2012 Committee could be 
the Director (or their designee) for each of the agencies listed above. 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

5



Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to appoint the Directors, or 
their designee, representing of each of the agencies listed above as the 2012 Scattered Site 
Housing Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
June 2012.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 

B. Refunds and Releases 
Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for June 2012 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for June 2012, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-349909 NC Lottery Funds  $850,000 
105911-470006 Cove Creek Roof Replacement $850,000  
 

The amendment recognized the July 2, 2012, notice of award of NC Lottery funds applied for by 
the Watauga County Board of Education after Board of Commissioner approval of the 
application on March 17, 2012. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-349909 NC Lottery Funds  $106,588 
105911-470009 Hardin Park Boiler Replacement $35,175  
105911-470010 Green Valley Parking Lot Paving $71,413  
 

The amendment appropriated NC Lottery Funds awarded in Fiscal Year 2011 for unfinished 
Watauga County Board of Education projects which were expected to be completed in the first 
quarter of Fiscal Year 2013. 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

6



Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE COUNTY’S SOLID 
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 
Chairman Miller declared the public hearing open at 6:08 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the 
proposed changes to the Watauga County Solid Waste Management Plan. 
 
Mr. J. V. Potter, Operation Services Manager, stated that every three (3) years, the County was 
required by the State to update the Solid Waste Management Plan and hold a public hearing as 
part of the update process.  The updated plan, which included a change to who hauled the Town 
of Blowing Rock’s recycling, had been publicized and was presented to the Board for review. 
 
Chairman Miller congratulated Mr. Potter along with the County’s Recycling Manager, Lisa 
Doty, upon being named 6th in the State of North Carolina for the County’s recycling efforts. 
 
There being no public comment, Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, 
moved to close the public hearing at 6:10 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the 2012 Watauga 
County Solid Waste Plan as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Request to Surplus Property Acquired from the New River Service Authority 
County Manager Geouque stated that the County recently acquired two properties as a result of 
foreclosures against the New River Service Authority.  The New River Service Authority 
(NRSA) approved a resolution requesting a Future Advance Deed of Trust from the County in 
September of 2011.  The Deed of Trust was secured by two tracts including land and buildings 
located in Watauga County. The amount secured by the Deed of Trust was 50% of the total tax 
value of the two tracts bringing the maximum amount available for allocation to $477,600.  
NRSA was unable to repay the loan and thus the properties were offered at public sale in which 
the County was the highest bidder in the amount of $454,000. 

080712 BCC Meeting

7



 
The Oak Street property was valued at $371,200 (Land: $201,300/Building: $169,900) and the 
Shadowline property was valued at $584,200 (Land: $386,000/Building: $198,200).  Should the 
Board wish to sell the properties, the first step would be to surplus them and then decide whether 
to sell them individually or together. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to declare the following two 
properties, including any structures located on them, as surplus:  one lot located at the 
intersection of Oak Street and Pine Street in the Town of Boone, NC, Parcel ID 2910-16-1829-
000 in the Watauga County tax maps and a 0.596 acre tract located on the Southwest side of the 
State Farm Road and on the Northwest side of the Shadowline Road in the Town of Boone, NC, 
Parcel ID 2910-53-4544-000 in the Watauga County tax maps. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that a determination declaring the method of sale for the 
properties would need to be made and presented a proposed resolution that would be required 
should the Board choose to utilize GovDeals as has been done in the past. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that three options were available:  an electronic auction through 
GovDeals, holding a public auction on the Courthouse steps, or through a negotiated bid process 
with the properties to be ultimately sold through an upset bid process. 
 
Discussion was held through which, by consensus, the Board agreed to have the County Manager 
list Notices of Sale for each of the properties, individually, and, then, if no offers were received 
after a few months, the Board could consider the other options available. 
 
After discussion regarding the listing amounts for the properties, Commissioner Blust, seconded 
by Chairman Miller, moved to direct the County Manager to list the Shadowline Road property 
(Parcel ID 2910-53-4544-000) for sale in the amount of $625,000 and the Oak Street property 
(Parcel ID 2910-16-1829-000) for sale in the amount of $425,000. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Miller, Blust) 
 Nay-1(Gable) 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the County Manger could use his discretion to determine the 
appropriate time to bring any negotiated offers to the Board for consideration.  The County 
Attorney also stated that any issues, such as a commission fee for realtors, could be negotiated 
when considering an offer; however, once an offer went to the upset bid process, those terms 
would have to remain consistent with each upset bid received. 
 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

8



B. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Region D Development Corporation was a Certified 
Development Company that assisted the US Small Business Administration in delivering small 
business loans to the region.  They also assisted in marketing and packaging loans for small 
businesses throughout the region.  Per their bylaws, each county was required each May to 
appoint four persons to serve as members of the Development Corporation each year.  
Representative categories were local government (1), private lending institution (1), and 
community organization or a business organization (2). 
 
The following were current appointees representing Watauga County:  Mr. Fowler Cooper 
(Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield (Community Organization); Mr. Jim Furman 
(Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins (Private Lending Institution). 
 
The County Manger stated that Mr. Cooper was no longer eligible as a local government 
representative.  The government representative could be from any elected or appointed local 
government official within the County. Therefore, staff recommended Mr. John Spear with the 
Watauga County Planning and Inspections Department, to fill the local government vacancy.  
This was a first reading for consideration of Mr. Spear; however, it was a second reading for the 
remaining three. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to waive the second reading 
and appoint Mr. John Spear as the Local Government representative for Watauga County to the 
Region D Development Corporation. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
The Board tabled consideration of the remaining three appointments to allow time for 
verification that they were still eligible representatives as listed. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that Ms. Julie Wiggins, Regional Ombudsman with the High 
Country Council of Governments, requested that Ms. Evelina Idol be considered for 
reappointment to the Watauga County Adult Care Home and Community Advisory Committee.  
Ms. Idol had indicated that she was willing to continue to serve, if so appointed.  Her current 
term expired June 17, 2012. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to waive the second reading 
and reappoint Ms. Evelina Idol to the Watauga County Adult Care Home and Community 
Advisory Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 

080712 BCC Meeting

9



C. Announcements 
County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• The County recently closed on the refinancing of the high school loan.  The County 
netted a total savings of $2.7 million with an average annual savings of $170,000. 

 
• The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) 105th Annual 

Conference was scheduled for August 16-18, 2012, in Wake County. 
 

• The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet was scheduled for Friday, 
September 7, 2012, at Linville Ridge. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:35 P.M., Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Personnel Matters, 
per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to resume the open meeting at 
7:12 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the June 19, 2012, 
closed session minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 
 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

10



ADJOURN 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
7:13 P.M. 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

080712 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 7, 2012 AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
PLAN 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Jeff Virginia, Emergency Services Director, will present changes to the Watauga County 
Emergency Operations Plan.  The major change is removing communication operations out from 
under the Sheriff to the Emergency Services Department reporting to the County Manager.  
Blowing Rock Communications was also eliminated as this is now handled by the Watauga 
County Communications and Emergency Services Department.   
 
Board action is required to accept the changes as presented. 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

15



080712 BCC Meeting

16



080712 BCC Meeting

17



080712 BCC Meeting

18



080712 BCC Meeting

19



080712 BCC Meeting

20



080712 BCC Meeting

21



080712 BCC Meeting

22



080712 BCC Meeting

23



080712 BCC Meeting

24



080712 BCC Meeting

25



080712 BCC Meeting

26



080712 BCC Meeting

27



080712 BCC Meeting

28



080712 BCC Meeting

29



080712 BCC Meeting

30



080712 BCC Meeting

31



080712 BCC Meeting

32



080712 BCC Meeting

33



080712 BCC Meeting

34



080712 BCC Meeting

35



080712 BCC Meeting

36



080712 BCC Meeting

37



080712 BCC Meeting

38



080712 BCC Meeting

39



080712 BCC Meeting

40



080712 BCC Meeting

41



080712 BCC Meeting

42



080712 BCC Meeting

43



080712 BCC Meeting

44



080712 BCC Meeting

45



080712 BCC Meeting

46



080712 BCC Meeting

47



080712 BCC Meeting

48



080712 BCC Meeting

49



080712 BCC Meeting

50



080712 BCC Meeting

51



080712 BCC Meeting

52



080712 BCC Meeting

53



080712 BCC Meeting

54



080712 BCC Meeting

55



080712 BCC Meeting

56



080712 BCC Meeting

57



080712 BCC Meeting

58



080712 BCC Meeting

59



080712 BCC Meeting

60



080712 BCC Meeting

61



080712 BCC Meeting

62



080712 BCC Meeting

63



080712 BCC Meeting

64



080712 BCC Meeting

65



080712 BCC Meeting

66



080712 BCC Meeting

67



080712 BCC Meeting

68



080712 BCC Meeting

69



080712 BCC Meeting

70



080712 BCC Meeting

71



080712 BCC Meeting

72



080712 BCC Meeting

73



080712 BCC Meeting

74



080712 BCC Meeting

75



080712 BCC Meeting

76



080712 BCC Meeting

77



080712 BCC Meeting

78



080712 BCC Meeting

79



080712 BCC Meeting

80



080712 BCC Meeting

81



080712 BCC Meeting

82



080712 BCC Meeting

83



080712 BCC Meeting

84



080712 BCC Meeting

85



080712 BCC Meeting

86



080712 BCC Meeting

87



080712 BCC Meeting

88



080712 BCC Meeting

89



080712 BCC Meeting

90



080712 BCC Meeting

91



080712 BCC Meeting

92



080712 BCC Meeting

93



080712 BCC Meeting

94



080712 BCC Meeting

95



080712 BCC Meeting

96



080712 BCC Meeting

97



080712 BCC Meeting

98



080712 BCC Meeting

99



080712 BCC Meeting

100



080712 BCC Meeting

101



080712 BCC Meeting

102



080712 BCC Meeting

103



080712 BCC Meeting

104



080712 BCC Meeting

105



080712 BCC Meeting

106



080712 BCC Meeting

107



080712 BCC Meeting

108



080712 BCC Meeting

109



080712 BCC Meeting

110



080712 BCC Meeting

111



080712 BCC Meeting

112



080712 BCC Meeting

113



080712 BCC Meeting

114



080712 BCC Meeting

115



080712 BCC Meeting

116



080712 BCC Meeting

117



080712 BCC Meeting

118



080712 BCC Meeting

119



080712 BCC Meeting

120



080712 BCC Meeting

121



080712 BCC Meeting

122



080712 BCC Meeting

123



080712 BCC Meeting

124



080712 BCC Meeting

125



080712 BCC Meeting

126



080712 BCC Meeting

127



080712 BCC Meeting

128



080712 BCC Meeting

129



080712 BCC Meeting

130



080712 BCC Meeting

131



080712 BCC Meeting

132



080712 BCC Meeting

133



080712 BCC Meeting

134



080712 BCC Meeting

135



080712 BCC Meeting

136



080712 BCC Meeting

137



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

138



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A.  Award of Architectural Services for Aquatic Center Repair Project 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
In 2010 Sutton-Kennerly & Associates Engineers provided a list of repairs to address the 
building deficiencies at the aquatics center.  Funds were budgeted in fiscal year 2012-13 to repair 
the skylights over the swimming pool.  An architect will be required to design the custom 
skylights and ensure compliance with the wind zone. 
 
Mr. Marsh has contacted the original architect, Innovative Design, who designed the energy 
upgrades in the 1990's.  Innovative Design has provided options for restoring or replacing the 
skylights.  Mr. Marsh is recommending Innovative Design for this project based on their 
knowledge and familiarity with the aquatic center. 
 
North Carolina G.S. 143-64.32 requires the use of the Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) 
process for procurement of professional services performed by architects, engineers, surveyors, 
and construction managers at risk unless the Board exempts itself.    
 
Staff requests the Board hire Innovative Design to restore/replace the skylights at the aquatic 
center and exempt this selection based on the firm’s knowledge and previous experience with 
design work at the center. 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

139



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

140



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

                                969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                                                                   Fax     (828) 264-1473 
 
TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:   Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
DATE:   July 23, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  Architectural Services for the Watauga County Aquatic Center Repair Project 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Sutton-Kennerly & Associates Engineers recommended a prioritized list of repairs to address 
the building deficiencies noted in their 2010 survey of building conditions.  This year the FY12-
13 budget includes the funds necessary to replace the fixed skylights over the swimming pools 
which have deteriorated over time.  This project will require an architect to design custom units 
that will be weather resistant and meet the 90 mph wind zone requirement for the site. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Innovative Design was the original architectural firm that designed the energy upgrades that 
were done in the early 1990’s.  I discussed the needed repairs several times this spring with 
Mike Nicklas, principal architect for the firm.  Mr. Nicklas suggested several options for 
restoring or replacing the skylights and he provided a preliminary cost estimate for the needed 
repairs (see attached). 
 
 I recommend Innovative Design for this project based upon their knowledge and previous 
experience with design work for the Aquatic Center.  Innovative Design has successfully 
completed projects for local and state government agencies.  The Commissioners will need to 
exempt this selection for a designer from the “Best Qualified” selection procedure as the fee is 
estimated to be less than $30,000.  

080712 BCC Meeting

141



 
BUDGET IMPACT   
 
The estimates for this project range from $33,471 to $65,795 depending on the scope of the 
repairs.  The architect will visit the site and recommend the best alternative to restore or 
replace the skylight units and provide construction documents.  Seventy-five thousand dollars  
is approved in the FY12-13 Budget for this project.      

080712 BCC Meeting

142



 Watauga County Pool Preliminary Cost Estimate 7/23/2012

CSI Division Quantity Unit Cost Cost CSI Division Quantity Unit Cost Cost

Div. 02 - Demolition Div. 02 - Demolition

x Demo skylights 1,400 sf $4.45 $6,233 x Demo skylights 150 sf $4.45 $668
x 10 CY dumpster 1 wks $468.56 $469 x 10 CY dumpster 1 wks $468.56 $234

$6,701 $902

Div. 03 - Concrete - n/a Div. 03 - Concrete - n/a

Div. 05 - Metals - n/a Div. 05 - Metals - n/a

x Abundant Energy Pro-Seal 5/8" material 1 LS $8,825 x New Caps (based on Abundant Energy cap) 1 LS $4,175
x labor 754 lf $7.00 $5,278 x labor 754 lf $3.50 $2,639
x miscellaneous new aluminum framing 1 LS $10,000

$24,103 $6,814

Div. 06 - Wood & Plastic - n/a Div. 06 - Wood & Plastic - n/a

Div. 07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection Div. 07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection

x flashing 450 sf $3.78 $1,702 x flashing 450 sf $3.78 $1,702
x 1" polyiso insulation 70 sf $0.73 $51 x 1" polyiso insulation 70 sf $0.73 $51

$1,753 $1,753

Div. 08 - Openings Div. 08 - Openings

x 5/8" plastic glazing - material 32 pcs $190.00 $6,080 x 5/8" plastic glazing - material 32 pcs $190.00 $6,080
x 5/8" plastic glazing - labor 32 pcs $38.00 $1,216 x 5/8" plastic glazing - labor 32 pcs $38.00 $1,216

$7,296 $7,296

Subtotal Hard Costs $39,853 Subtotal Hard Costs $16,765

Contingency for unexpected conditions 10% Subtotal $3,985.33 $3,985 Contingency for unexpected conditions 10% Subtotal $1,676.50 $1,677

Div. 01 - General Conditions & GC O&P 30.00% Subtotal $39,853.33 $11,956 $11,956 Div. 01 - General Conditions & GC O&P 30.00% Subtotal $16,765.05 $5,030 $5,030

Total $55,795 Total $23,471

Total with Design - Large Scope $10,000 $65,795 Total with Design - Large Scope $10,000 $33,471

Total with Design - Smaller Scope $6,000 $61,795 Total with Design - Smaller Scope $6,000 $29,471

Replace All Replace Only Caps, Glazing and Flashing

080712 BCC Meeting

143



Governmental Agencies 

080712 BCC Meeting

144



WHO WE ARE 

Innova ve  Design  specializes  in  the  planning  and  designing  of  high‐performance  and 
environmentally  sensi ve buildings. We believe  that by  focusing on  sustainable design 
principles,  we  are  able  to  create  healthy,  produc ve  and  cost‐effec ve  working 
environments. 

Innova ve  Design was  founded  in North  Carolina  in  1977  and  includes  a  staff  of  six 
licensed architects.  Our services include: 

 Project Advanced Planning 

 Space Programming 

 Architectural Design 

 Construc on Administra on 

 Post‐Occupancy Evalua on 

 Exis ng Building Energy Efficiency Improvement 

 Integrated Project Delivery and LEED Cer fica on 

 Energy Modeling and Dayligh ng Consul ng 

 Renewable Energy Systems Design 

 Rainwater Harves ng  

 Sustainable Design Guidelines for Governmental Agencies 

 Research and Development 

 

F IRM  PROF I L E  
 

 

Innova ve Design has been a member of the USGBC since 
2000  and  is  commi ed  to mee ng  the  AIA’s  Architecture 
2030 Challenge goal. (www.architecture 2030.org) 

To be the world’s leader in 
advancing sustainable design 

080712 BCC Meeting

145



BU I LD ING  PERFORMANCE  
 

 

Long Term Commitment, Long Term Savings 
Because  of  our  commitment  to 
crea ng  energy‐efficient  buildings 
and the metrics by which we  judge 
our  success,  we  have  been 
collec ng energy performance data 
since  1977.  The  solar  and  energy 
efficiency  features  incorporated 
into our buildings have  saved over 
5.2  trillion Btu’s  for our clients, an 
amount  equal  to  $130 million  and 
the peak  reduc on equivalent of a 
51  MW  power  plant.  If  you 
consider  the  addi onal  grid‐ ed 
solar  projects  that  Innova ve 
Design  played  an  integral  part  in 
implemen ng,  our  peak  load 
reduc on  is  equivalent  to  a  124 
MW power plant. 

Since  2000, we  have  incorporated 
rainwater harves ng systems in our 
projects  that  have  saved  260 
million gallons of municipal water. 

Post‐occupancy building performance analysis:  

We  are  commi ed  to working with  our  clients  to  verify  the  building’s  performance  by 
comparing it to our projected energy and water consump on. 

EXPERT I SE  
 

 

Leader in the Sustainable Building Industry 
Our  staff  has  contributed  to  the  building  industry  through developing  and presen ng 
workshops, publishing  research papers and guidelines, par cipa ng  in  task  forces and 
volunteering for various organiza ons to advance sustainable design.  Key contribu ons 
by our staff are: 

 Delegate to United Na ons Earth Summit 

 President of the Interna onal Solar Energy Society 

 Chair of the American Solar Energy Society  

 Member of the North Carolina Energy Policy Council 

 Board member of the Sustainable Buildings Industry Council 

 Chair of the North Carolina Sustainable Energy Associa on 

 President of the AIA Triangle 

 Chair of the USGBC North Carolina Triangle Chapter 

 USGBC® Faculty™ 

 AIA Representa ve to ASHRAE’s Advanced Energy Guide for K‐12 Schools 

Specialized Exper se 
Members  of  our  staff  are  industry  recognized  experts  in  key  aspects  of  sustainable 
design.  Diversified  exper se  among  our  staff  enables  our  projects  to  achieve  well 
integrated design solu ons through con nuous feedback from each other.  Key areas of  
our exper se include: 

 Energy modeling 

 Dayligh ng simula on and thermal energy analysis 

 Renewable energy system design 

 Rainwater harves ng 

 LEED® Ra ng Systems 

080712 BCC Meeting

146



GOVERNMENT   FEATURED  PROJECT  
 

 

Loca on:  North Wilkesboro, NC 
10,500 SF New Construc on 
Comple on: October 2009 
 
The Northwest North Carolina Rest Area and Visitor Center operates con nuously, serving 
over 500  travelers per day. The associated high energy and water demands mean  that 
NCDOT benefits greatly from Innova ve Design’s sustainable building prac ces. 
 
This project has achieved LEED Gold  cer fica on. Key  integrated, green design  features 
include: 
 

 Energy efficient building envelope 
 Dayligh ng in visitor halls and restrooms 
 Geothermal cooling and hea ng with heat recovery ven la on 
 Solar domes c hot water 
 Photovoltaics 
 Constructed wetlands and bioswales 
 Rainwater reuse for toilet flushing 
 Drought tolerant landscaping 
 Dark‐sky compliant site ligh ng 
 Low‐ and zero‐VOC materials 
 Educa onal signage throughout the visitor center 

 
The project was also awarded the 2011 Environmental Excellence Award by the Federal 
Highway Administra on.   
 
Go to h p://ncdot.technology‐view.com/wilkes if you want to see, real‐ me, how all the 
sustainable energy and water systems are performing. 
 

NCDOT Northwest North Carolina Rest Area and Visitor Center  

“People think DOT’s color is either yellow from our trucks or orange from our construc on 
cones. Today, DOT has a new color, GREEN!” 
 

    Eugene A. Con , Jr., NCDOT Secretary 

080712 BCC Meeting

147



GOVERNMENT   FEATURED  PROJECT  
 

 

Bay Transit Gloucester Facility 

Loca on:  Gloucester, VA 
18,700 SF New Construc on 
Comple on: October 2013 (expected) 
 
Bay Transit  plans to build the Gloucester Transit Facility in an effort to improve opera ng 
efficiency, accommodate local and regional growth and improve mobility for the residents 
of  the  region.  Bay  Transit  intends  to  build  a  cost  effec ve,  energy‐and‐water‐efficient 
building  to  func on  for over  forty years. With a  focus on  long‐term opera onal savings 
and  stormwater management,  the Owner has  embraced  a wide  range of  economically 
viable green strategies, including: 
 

 Energy‐efficient building envelope 
 Dayligh ng in regularly occupied spaces  
 Geothermal heat pumps for cooling and hea ng for office area 
 Waste‐oil reuse boiler for maintenance shop hea ng 
 Heat recovery ven la on 
 Efficient ligh ng with sensor and  mer based controls 
 Rainwater reuse for bus wash and toilet flushing 
 Low‐flow water fixtures 
 Constructed wetland and bioswales 
 Submetering for each mechanical zone 
 Green monitoring and interpre ve signs 
 Photovoltaics 

 

“I want to commend all of you again for doing such a great job!!  I know we have really 
heaped a lot of expecta ons on you with ght deadlines and you all have come through 
every me!!  So thank you, thank you for all of the effort and hard work.  And it has paid off.” 

 
Larry Kight, Project Manager, Bay Transit 

080712 BCC Meeting

148



GOVERNMENT   FEATURED  PROJECT  
 

 

NCDOT Ferry Terminals 

Loca on:  Swan Quarter and Cherry Point, NC 
Swan Quarter: 5,000 SF New Construc on 
Cherry Branch: 7,300 SF New Construc on 
Comple on: est. 2013 
Designed in conjunc on with NCDOT 
 
NCDOT Cherry Branch Ferry Facility 

Project Descrip on: One story ferry facility  in Cherry Branch, NC accommoda ng  lobby, 
offices,  staff  galley,  conference  room  and  restrooms.    The  building  is  designed  with 
various  energy  efficient  and  water  efficient  technologies  including  a  geothermal  heat 
pump, solar thermal panels, highly efficient building envelope, low flow plumbing fixtures, 
rainwater harves ng, dayligh ng and efficient ligh ng fixtures. 

 

NCDOT Swan Quarter Ferry Facility 

Project Descrip on: One story  ferry  facility  in Swan Quarter, NC accommoda ng  lobby, 
offices,  staff  galley,  conference  room,  restrooms,  and  ferry  crew’s  dormitory.    The 
building  is  designed  with  various  energy  efficient  and  water  efficient  technologies 
including  a  geothermal  heat  pump,  solar  thermal  panels,  highly  efficient  building 
envelope,  low  flow  plumbing  fixtures,  rainwater  harves ng,  dayligh ng,  and  efficient 
ligh ng fixtures. 

 

Life Cycle Cost Analysis: 

Life Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA)  is a key to making the right decisions. We conduct extensive 
LCCA at the Preliminary and Schema c Design phases. 

080712 BCC Meeting

149



GOVERNMENT   FEATURED  PROJECT  
 

 

Tennessee Valley Authority Office Complex 

Loca on:  Cha anooga, TN 
Dayligh ng and Energy Efficiency Improvement Retrofit 
Comple on: TBD 
 
The following summarizes the dayligh ng and energy‐related tasks completed by Innova ve 
Design  in  conjunc on  with  Derthick,  Henley  &  Wilkerson  Architects  in  analyzing  TVA's 
Cha anooga Office Complex.   
 
This first phase of work focused on Lookout Place and generally consisted of steps to: 
 

 Determine the current dayligh ng contribu on through new monitoring and 
past evalua ons, 

 Compare actual dayligh ng monitoring data to predicted Daysim computer 
simula ons and  

 Develop an eQUEST overall energy model of Lookout Place  that compared 
favorably with the exis ng energy performance of the building. 

 
Once we developed both dayligh ng and overall energy models  that  reliably  simulated 
actual performance, we were able to: 
 

 Evaluate  numerous  dayligh ng  strategy  op ons  for  perimeter  spaces  and 
atrium,  

 Evaluate  exis ng  products  and  systems  that  allow  the  various  dayligh ng 
strategies  to be  implemented and develop  construc on  cost es mates  for 
the various op ons, 

 Simulate the dayligh ng contribu on in conjunc on with the overall energy 
performance to determine the best energy saving strategy and 

 Inves gate  the  impact  that worksta on par ons have on  the dayligh ng 
contribu on. 

 
Phase 2 expands  to modeling  the en re TVA complex and  looking at  recommenda ons 
for the HVAC, ligh ng, plug loads and dayligh ng. 

080712 BCC Meeting

150



GOVERNMENT   FEATURED  PROJECT  
 

 

Loca on:  Cha anooga, TN 
300,000 SF  
Comple on: 2003 
 
Innova ve Design’s Role: 

 Dayligh ng consul ng 
 Sustainable design consul ng 
 Rainwater system 
 Photovoltaic system 
 Green building materials 
 Eco‐educa on 

The Cha anooga Conven on Center project combined  the renova on of a 110,000 square 
foot  facility with  the addi on of a 188,000 square  foot new  facility  into a state‐of  the‐ art 
sustainable exhibit and conven on center.  With Innova ve Design serving as a sustainability 
consultant  to  the  na onally  recognized  firm  DH&W,  the  facility  became  the  first major 
conven on center in the country to incorporate dayligh ng as the primary ligh ng strategy.  
 
The design objec ve emphasized the use of extensive dayligh ng  in all major spaces as the 
primary light source.  Natural light enters the large exhibit spaces through expansive south‐
facing roof monitors that evenly distribute the dayligh ng within the exhibit halls with the 
aid  of  interior  baffles.    In  addi on  to  greatly  reducing  the  requirements  for  cooling 
equipment, the roof monitors provide superior  ligh ng condi ons for at  least two‐thirds of 
the  daylit  hours.    The majority  of  the  break‐out  rooms  are  also  daylit  using  a  variety  of 
strategies. 
 
Motorized darkening shades,  light sensors and dimmable  ligh ng controls provide smooth 
transi ons  between  varying  light  condi ons  and  desired  effects  to  enhance  comfort  and 
maximize  economic  benefits  of  the  dayligh ng  strategies.   With  state‐of‐the‐art,  energy 
efficient HVAC and ligh ng systems designed to be compa ble with the dayligh ng strategy, 
temperatures are accurately controlled throughout the center, comfort is increased, indoor 
air quality is improved and substan al energy savings are realized.  

Cha anooga Conven on Center 
With DH&W Architects 

Design Objec ve: To be the premier green conven on center in the country 

080712 BCC Meeting

151



GOVERNMENT   FEATURED  PROJECT  
 

 

City of Raleigh Solar Development at the Neuse River Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 

Loca on:  Raleigh, NC 
1.3 MW Photovoltaics 
Comple on: December 2011  
 
The  Neuse  River  Wastewater  Treatment  Plant  solar  installa on  is  the  largest  solar 
installa on  on  any  municipal  property  in  the  state  of  North  Carolina.  Innova ve 
Design served as the catalyst for the project, ac ng as the City of Raleigh’s representa ve 
in  selec ng a  site,  solici ng  solar developer  interest, developing RFPs and assis ng  the 
City in evalua ng the proposals.  

Mecklenburg County Solar Development 
Loca on:  Mecklenburg County, NC 
141 Solar Thermal Collectors over Five County Facili es 
Comple on: 2011 
 
Innova ve Design’s role included assis ng Mecklenburg County in solici ng and obtaining 
$740,000 in federal grant money, analyzing poten al loca ons, developing bid documents 
and evalua ng bids from solar contractors.  Innova ve Design also assisted Mecklenburg 
County during the Construc on Administra on process.  
 
The final  installa ons occurred  at County  Jail North, Metro  School, Medical Examiner's 
Office, Central Piedmont Community College's Culinary Arts Building and the Department 
of Social Services Wallace H. Kuralt Centre. As a result, the county will avoid using more 
than 1.5 million cubic  feet of natural gas per year and will be able to financially benefit 
from the Renewable Energy Credits.  

“We’re proud to be taking this step forward in the environmental sustainability of our 
facili es. These solar water heaters represent our commitment to shrinking Mecklenburg 
County’s carbon footprint and using clean‐energy technology to save our taxpayers on facility 
opera ng costs.” 

 
Jennifer Roberts, Mecklenburg County Commission Chair 

080712 BCC Meeting

152



GOVERNMENTAL  PROJECT  EXPER IENCE  
 

 

Representa ve Governmental Agency Clients 
National: 

 National Bureau of Standards   
 National Renewable Energy Laboratory   
 Los Alamos National Laboratories   
 United States Department of Energy   
 United States Fish and Wildlife Service   
 United States Postal Service   

State: 
 Kentucky Division of Energy   
 Mississippi Department of Energy and Transportation   
 New York  State Energy Research and Development Authority 
 North Carolina Alternative Energy Corporation   
 North Carolina Department of Commerce, Energy Division   
 North Carolina Department of Transportation   
 North Carolina Energy Institute    
 Ohio Schools Facilities Commission    
 State Energy Conservation Office of Texas   
 Tennessee Energy Division   
 Tennessee Valley Authority   

County: 
 Johnston County, North Carolina 
 Martin County, North Carolina 
 Wake County, North Carolina 
 Watauga County, North Carolina 

Municipal 
 City of Raleigh, North Carolina 
 Town of Clayton, North Carolina 
 Town of Rowland, North Carolina 
 Town of Selma, North Carolina 

“[Northwest North Carolina Sustainable Visitors Center] shows the public that DOT cares about the 
environment and that there are many ways for people and government to make a difference.” 

Jennifer Pi s, North Carolina Department of Transporta on 

GOVERNMENTAL  GREEN   IN I T IAT IVES  
 

 

Innova ve  Design  has  focused  on  designing  energy  efficient,  environmentally  sound 
projects since 1977.  In order to increase the posi ve impact that our firm can have within 
our  communi es,  our  country  and  the  world  we  have  consulted  with  numerous 
governmental agencies  in an effort to advance good sustainable design.   Our consul ng 
services include: 

 Design charre es and project goal se ng sessions 
 Energy analysis using eQuest, TRNSYS and other energy so ware 
 Dayligh ng simula on using Daysim  
 Design review throughout the design phase 
 LEED documenta on and cer fica on 
 Green product input/specifica ons 
 Holis c water cycle design including rainwater harves ng and 

environmentally‐sound wastewater treatment 
 Renewable energy design 
 Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) and carbon footprint analysis 
 Construc on shop drawing review for green products and systems 

Examples—Ohio and New York Ini a ves 
Innova ve  Design  was  the  lead  consultant  for  the  development  of  the  Ohio  School 
Facili es Commission’s Green School Ini a ve and New York State Energy Research and 
Development Authority’s effort to green New York schools. We contributed to: 

 Evalua ng  their  standards  and  proposed  energy  and  water  performance 
improvement opportuni es per clima c regions of each state 

 Analyzing the cost benefit  for each recommended measure and priori zing 
measures related to LEED ra ng 

 Developing and conduc ng workshops on dayligh ng, rainwater harves ng, 
solar water hea ng and plug load management to train local architects and 
engineers 

 Conduc ng one‐on‐one plan review sessions with all A/E teams selected to 
design Ohio schools 

 Evalua ng  exis ng  schools  and  addressing  the  poten al  of  retrofi ng 
glazing strategies to improve energy‐efficiency and dayligh ng quality 

080712 BCC Meeting

153



WHY  GREEN   FOR  YOUR  BU I LD ING  
 

 

Reducing Opera ng Costs 

Green buildings save your cost through: 
 

 Reduced  energy  consump on:  Our 
buildings are designed  to exceed  the 
AIA  2030  Challenge  objec ves  and 
save  a  minimum  of  60%  in  energy 
compared to typical public buildings 

 Reduced  water  consump on:  We 
rou nely  design  to  reduce  potable 
water use by 80‐90%  

 Durable, easy‐maintenance materials: 
We incorporate materials that reduce 
repair, replacement and maintenance 
costs 

 
Green saves taxpayers’ dollars! 

WHY  GREEN   FOR  YOUR  BU I LD ING  
 

 

In  addi on  to  dayligh ng  saving  opera ng  costs,  controlled 
natural  ligh ng  strategies  improve  worker  produc vity  and 
absenteeism.   Of all  the sustainable building design  features, 
there  is  none  that  provides more  benefits  at  less  cost  than 
dayligh ng. 

Innova ve Design is known worldwide for our exper se in 
dayligh ng design. 

With increasing public awareness regarding the importance of 
good  indoor environmental quality, more governmental agencies are  implemen ng green 
strategies to improve the quality of their workplaces.   These are strategies our design team 
has been implemen ng in our buildings for decades: 

 Controlled, diffused dayligh ng of all key work areas 
 Healthy building materials and products 
 Natural ven la on op ons 
 Outdoor air strategies that provide excellent air quality with minimum energy 

loss 

Healthy and Produc ve Workplaces 
 

Benefits of Dayligh ng 
A  2010  research  conducted  by  Rensselaer  Polytechnic  Ins tute  at  the  daylit  Smith Middle 
School  in  Chapel  Hill,  NC  that was  designed  by  Innova ve  Design, 
indicated  that  students  in daylit environments were  receiving more 
short‐wave, blue  light than students exposed to fluorescent fixtures. 
This  impacted  the  circadian  cycle  of  the  students  exposed  to 
dayligh ng, allowing them to have be er sleep pa erns and receive 
more  sleep  each  night.  For  decades  it  has  been  observed  that 
students  in daylit environments have had higher a endance records 
and  performed  be er  (studies  of  the  academic  performance  of 
students  in  Innova ve  Design’s  daylit  schools  found  that  students 
scored  14%  higher  in  their  end‐of‐grade  tests  than  comparable 
students in the county). This study iden fies dayligh ng as a significant factor in why students 
in these types of environments are healthier and more alert. 

 

080712 BCC Meeting

154



INNOVAT ION  
 

Since  Innova ve Design’s  forma on  in 1977, our goal has been  to advance  sustainable 
design.   Our contribu ons  to sustainability and  renewable energy have been significant 
and our green  innova ons have  come  in many  forms: programs and ventures, product 
enhancement,  guidelines  and new heights  in whole‐building,  integrated design. As our 
name implies, we are true green innovators. 

PV Bonus 

 At  the  me  when  building‐integrated 
photovoltaics was  just a concept,  Innova ve 
Design was selected by the US DOE as one of 
three  companies  in  the  country  to  develop 
and  advance  strategies  to  integrate  PV  into 
building design. 

 We  developed  two  prototype,  roof‐
integrated, hybrid systems that  incorporated 
photovoltaics  and  heat  recovery  and 
integrated  them  into  a  new 
prototype  Applebee's  restaurant  and  a 
Central  Carolina  Bank.  The  results  were 
featured on CNN's  "Science and Technology 
Week” in 1997. 

 

Power Roof™ 
 Working  with  Duke  Solar  (now  Solargenix), 

Innova ve  Design  developed  the  Power 
RoofTM,  an  integrated, hybrid  roof  structure 
with  solar  thermal  collector,  natural 
dayligh ng,  radiant  barrier  and  rainwater 
harves ng system. 

 The  high‐temperature,  tracking  solar 
collectors  were  developed  to  provide  
electricity,  hea ng  and  cooling,  industrial 
process  heat,  desalina on  and  water 
purifica on. 

 

 

Translucent Interior Light Shelf 

 Glare‐free, diffused light 

 Tested  with  a  mock‐up  during  Design 
Development 

 Measured performance through research 

 Easy  maintenance  with  hinged  connec on 
for individual sec on 

 Installed in many projects throughout the US 

Raincatcher™ 

 Rainwater  collec on  system  design  so ware 
for facili es throughout the US 

 Monthly  water  balance  and  preliminary  cost 
es mate included 

 Local climate data op miza on 

Workshops, Guidelines & Technical Papers 

 Over  350  conference  presenta ons  and 
workshops  in  27  countries  and  32  states  by 
our staff  targeted  for building owners,  facility 
managers and design professionals 

 Over  20  design  guidelines  for  na onal,  state 
and  county  clients  throughout  the  US 
including US DOE, Ohio, Texas and New York 

 Over  100  technical  papers  and  ar cles 
published 

INNOVAT ION  

080712 BCC Meeting

155



SOLAR  DEVELOPMENT  
 

 

Your Green Power Profit Center  

How Can an Organiza on Take Advantage of This Opportunity?  

Public  ins tu ons  and  non‐profits  can  create  a  green  power  profit  center  by  engaging  a 
private solar developer that will own, finance, install and maintain solar systems, allevia ng 
the Owner of  these  typical costs. Addi onally,  the solar developer  leases  the space where 
the solar system is placed, providing immediate posi ve cash flow to the facility owner. 

Because  of  federal  and  state  tax  incen ves  and  laws,  it  is  advantageous  for  the  solar 
developer to retain ownership of the system for six to seven years un l the tax advantages 
are exhausted. During this period, benefits from Renewable Energy Cer ficate (REC) and/or 
solar electricity sale are retained by the solar developer. 

However,  in  year  seven,  it  is advantageous  for  the  solar developer  to  sell and  the  facility 
owner to buy the solar system for a frac on of the ini al cost. Because the facility owner is 
also  the  recipient  of  the balance of  the  ini al  power  and  REC purchase  agreements,  this 
revenue  stream  further enhances  the posi ve  cash flow advantages  for  the owner. Given 
that today’s solar systems operate for over thirty years, the net cash benefit to the facility 
owner will be substan al. 

What Services Can Innova ve Design Provide? 

Our rela onships with solar developers and u li es, experience  in  incorpora ng renewable 
energy systems and understanding of the REC requirements enables us to best represent an 
Owner in pursuing this great opportunity. Our services include: 

 Facility surveys or energy audits to determine appropriate opportuni es 

 Iden fying poten al solar developers and REC purchasers 

 Developing  appropriate  documenta on  of  scope  and  unique  project 
requirements 

 Developing “Requests for Proposals” or bid documents 

 Evalua ng proposals and assis ng nego a on of lease agreements/contracts 

 Represen ng the Owner during construc on 

RESEARCH  AND  ANALYS I S  
 

 

Analy cal Approach 

Other architects typically use their energy simula on to size their mechanical system once 
the  building  is  fully  designed.  Our  in‐house  energy  analysts,  star ng  during  Schema c 
Design, develop numerous op ons while working hand‐in‐hand with our architects as they 
evaluate complex interac ons of building systems. 

DAYSIM 

By  u lizing  this  hourly  dayligh ng  simula on  program,  we  generate  space‐by‐space 
illuminance profiles that can be imported into our DOE‐2 energy simula on so ware. 

eQuest, TRNSYS, EnergyPlus and RETScreen 

Our analy cal team u lizes four key energy simula on so ware tools to model individual 
systems and  the whole building. Unlike many designers, we use  these design  tools  for 
decision‐making. eQuest and EnergyPlus are employed to analyze whole‐building energy 
consump on. TRNSYS  is used  to  simulate  complicated  industrial process  loads  and/or 
transient  thermal  energy  flows,  such  as  district  steam  hea ng,  district  chilled water, 
solar thermal and waste heat reuse. 

Raincatcher™ 

We developed and u lize this program to simulate rainwater harves ng opportuni es. 

Collabora ve Research 

We conduct  research using analy cal  tools  to advance  the  industry.  In addi on  to our 
own research, we have collaborated with leading universi es and agencies such as: 

 U.S. Department of Energy 

 Na onal Renewable Energy Laboratory 

 Rensselaer Polytechnic Ins tute’s Ligh ng Research Center 

 North Carolina State University and the North Carolina Solar Center 

 Tennessee Valley Authority 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

156



SUSTA INABLE  DES IGN  PR INC IP LES  
 

 

INTEGRATED PROJECT DELIVERY 

OUR TYPICAL SUSTAINABLE APPROACHES 

WORK TOGETHER—Early involvement of stakeholders and design team. 

SET  GOALS  EARLY—Energy  and  water  reduc on  goals  are  set  at  the  beginning  of  the 
project with consensus reached by all stakeholders. 

HEAVY  DESIGN  WORK  UP  FRONT—Schema c  Design  is  emphasized  and  incorporates 
extensive analyses in order to clarify key building systems early in design. 

POST‐OCCUPANCY—Our  designers  are  involved  a er  occupancy  to  ensure  proper  use, 
opera on and maintenance of the building. We acquire u lity bills to compare to the design 
models and alert the owner if any disparity is found and, if necessary, address the disparity. 

DAYLIGHTING—Enhances occupant comfort, boosts occupant 
performance and reduces u lity costs  

ENERGY—Energy efficient building shell design, high efficiency 
HVAC  systems  and  equipment,  demand‐side  reduc on, 
process and plug  load  reduc on,  renewable energy  systems, 
efficient  ligh ng  with  dayligh ng  and  occupancy  sensors,  
sophis cated  metering  and  remote  energy  management 
systems 

WATER—On‐site  stormwater  management  using  bioswales 
and constructed wetlands, rainwater harves ng, green on‐site 
wastewater  treatment,  low‐flow  fixtures,  no  potable  water 
used for irriga on 

AIR  QUALITY—Higher  air  quality  standards  by  specifying 
environmentally  benign  materials  and  finishes,  properly 
designed  ven la on  systems,  priori zing  mold  preven on 
measures and  installing pollutant sensors  to control  fresh‐air 
make‐up 

RECOGNIT ION  
 

 

US EPA ENERGY STAR®  ‐ Excellence in Promo ng Superior Energy Performance in Building 
Design. A 2006  and 2007  recipient,  Innova ve  Design was  the first  architectural firm  to 
receive this honor. 

2008 EPA WATER SAVER—Recognized as having designed the top water‐saving strategy for 
schools in the US. 

North  Carolina  State  Energy  Office  2005 —  North  Carolina’s  top  award  for  promo ng 
energy efficiency. 

Illumina ng Engineering Society of North America 2006—Interna onal Illumina on Design 
Award of Merit for the dayligh ng of Heritage Middle School. 

City  of  Raleigh  2008—Environmental  Award  for  “Pioneering  Efforts”  in  designing 
sustainable buildings. 

American Ins tute of Architects —Top Ten Most Environmentally Sensi ve Buildings in the 
Country. Awarded  in 1997  for Durant Road Middle  School  and 1999  for Roy  Lee Walker 
Elementary School (with SHW). 

Environmental Hall of  Fame  2008—Innova ve Design’s President Mike Nicklas has been 
inducted. 

Sustainable  Buildings  Industry  Council—Best Exemplary  Sustainable Building  in 2005  for 
Heritage Middle School and Beyond Green High Performance Building Award  in 2007  for 
Northern Guilford Middle School. 

Environmental Excellence Award  2011 —From the Federal Highway Administra on for the 
Wilkes County Sustainable Visitors Center. 

“We highly recommend the firm of Innova ve Design to anyone interested in high quality architecture 
with an emphasis on sustainable design.” 

     Jennifer Pi s, Roadside Environmental Engineer, NCDOT 

"Innova ve Design has exceeded our expecta ons in all areas: presenta ons, plan reviews and 
suppor ng materials. On‐site, working with architects, there is none be er! I recommend Mike [Nicklas] 
and Innova ve Design without hesita on and with the highest praise."  

Donald W. Fudge, Project Manager, TRC Energy Services 

“I appreciate your effort. If all our architects were as proac ve as you gentlemen, my job would be 
much easier.” 

    David Smith, Guilford County Schools, NC, Former Program Director 

080712 BCC Meeting

157



Phone: 919.832.6303 
Fax: 919.832.3339 
www.innova vedesign.net 

850 West Morgan Street 
Raleigh, NC 27603 

Printed on FSC cer fied paper that is 100% recyclable. 
7.13.2012 

080712 BCC Meeting

158



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

B. Change Order Request for Demolition of the Old High School 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Marsh will present a change order request for the old Watauga High School demolition 
project.   The change order is for additional asbestos encountered over the original bid and 
contracted amount.  The change order is for $37,338 which includes 9,346 sqft of floor tile and 
mastic, 100 sq. ft. of sink mastic, 200 sq. ft. of cooler ceiling plaster, and 30 sq. ft. of vibration 
dampners.  The change order will leave $62,662 remaining in the contingency to cover any 
additional issues that may be forthcoming. 
 
Staff requests the Board approve the change order from NEO Corporation in the amount of 
$37,338 for additional asbestos abatement.  Funds are to be allocated from the project 
contingency. 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

159



080712 BCC Meeting

160



080712 BCC Meeting

161



080712 BCC Meeting

162



080712 BCC Meeting

163



080712 BCC Meeting

164



080712 BCC Meeting

165



080712 BCC Meeting

166



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the Monthly Collections Report and be available for 
questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

080712 BCC Meeting

167



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

168



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

TAX MATTERS  

B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

169



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

170



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

TAX MATTERS  

C.  Annual Settlement of Tax Collector 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per G.S. 105-373, an annual settlement of the Tax Collector is required to be prepared and 
submitted to the Board of Commissioners for review and approval.  Mr. Byrd will be present to 
discuss the settlement and answer any questions you have.  Board action is required for approval. 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

171



080712 BCC Meeting

172



080712 BCC Meeting

173



080712 BCC Meeting

174



080712 BCC Meeting

175



080712 BCC Meeting

176



080712 BCC Meeting

177



080712 BCC Meeting

178



080712 BCC Meeting

179



080712 BCC Meeting

180



080712 BCC Meeting

181



080712 BCC Meeting

182



080712 BCC Meeting

183



080712 BCC Meeting

184



080712 BCC Meeting

185



080712 BCC Meeting

186



080712 BCC Meeting

187



080712 BCC Meeting

188



080712 BCC Meeting

189



080712 BCC Meeting

190



080712 BCC Meeting

191



080712 BCC Meeting

192



080712 BCC Meeting

193



080712 BCC Meeting

194



080712 BCC Meeting

195



080712 BCC Meeting

196



080712 BCC Meeting

197



080712 BCC Meeting

198



080712 BCC Meeting

199



080712 BCC Meeting

200



080712 BCC Meeting

201



080712 BCC Meeting

202



080712 BCC Meeting

203



080712 BCC Meeting

204



080712 BCC Meeting

205



080712 BCC Meeting

206



080712 BCC Meeting

207



080712 BCC Meeting

208



080712 BCC Meeting

209



080712 BCC Meeting

210



080712 BCC Meeting

211



080712 BCC Meeting

212



080712 BCC Meeting

213



080712 BCC Meeting

214



080712 BCC Meeting

215



080712 BCC Meeting

216



080712 BCC Meeting

217



080712 BCC Meeting

218



080712 BCC Meeting

219



080712 BCC Meeting

220



080712 BCC Meeting

221



080712 BCC Meeting

222



080712 BCC Meeting

223



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

224



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

TAX MATTERS  

D.  Oath to Collect Taxes 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Each year the Board of County Commissioners is required to authorize the Tax Administrator of 
Watauga County to collect taxes for the upcoming year.  Board action is requested to authorize 
the Tax Administrator to begin the process of collection. 
 
 
  
  

080712 BCC Meeting

225



080712 BCC Meeting

226



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Clarification of EMS Advisory Committee Appointments   
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
As part of the Watauga County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance the EMS Advisory Committee 
was created.  The purpose of the Committee is to advise the County on matters related to the 
enforcement of the Ordinance and recommend standards of care, policies, procedures, and 
actions that will improve and enhance the quality of service.   
 
The Committee is comprised of representatives of various agencies involved in assisting and 
providing medical services to the community.  Upon initial adoption of the committee, names of 
the representatives were also approved by the Board.  The EMS Advisory Committee is 
requesting clarification that the membership be identified by each agency or its designee and not 
by specific member names.  This would allow the Committee to be consistent with the newly 
adopted Emergency Services Committee and also provide flexibility should the designated 
member not be able to attend.  The Committee itself would select the 1-2 At-Large Appointee(s) 
and the 1 First Responder from geographic area not covered by the listed representatives.   
 
Staff requests the Board clarify that the appointment to the EMS Advisory Committee as based 
on the agency or its designee as provided in the attached list. 
 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

227



080712 BCC Meeting

228



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Appointment of Voting Delegate at the North Carolina Association of County 
Commissioners (NCACC) Annual Conference 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) Annual Conference is 
scheduled for August 16-18, 2012, in Wake County.  Each county in attendance is required to 
select a voting member for representation at the annual business meeting which is conducted as a 
part of the conference.  Submission of the voting delegate is due August 10, 2012.   
 
Board direction is requested. 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

229



 

 
 
 
 

Designation of Voting Delegates 
to NCACC Annual Conference 

  
 
 
 I, ______________________________________, hereby certify that I am the duly designated voting 

delegate for ______________________________ County at the 105th Annual Conference of the North 

Carolina Association of County Commissioners to be held in Wake County, N.C., on August 16-19, 

2012. 

 
Signed: ______________________________________ 

Title:_______________________________________ 

 
Article VI, Section 2 of our Constitution provides: 
 

 “On all questions, including the election of officers, each county represented shall be entitled to one 
vote, which shall be the majority expression of the delegates of that county. The vote of any county in 
good standing may be cast by any one of its county commissioners who is present at the time the vote 
is taken; provided, if no commissioner be present, such vote may be cast by another county official, 
elected or appointed, who holds elective office or an appointed position in the county whose vote is 
being cast and who is formally designated by the board of county commissioners. These provisions 
shall likewise govern district meetings of the Association. A county in good standing is defined as one 
which has paid the current year's dues.” 
 

 
 
Please return this form to Sheila Sammons by: Friday, August 10, 2012: 

 
NCACC 

215 N. Dawson St. 
Raleigh, NC 27603 
Fax: (919) 733-1065 

sheila.sammons@ncacc.org 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

230



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Boards and Commissions 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per the bylaws of the Region D Development Corporation, each county is required to annually 
appoint four persons to serve as members of the Development Corporation Board.  
Representative categories are local government (1), private lending institution (1), and 
community organization or a business organization (2).  
 
At your last meeting, Mr. John Spear was appointed, as the Watauga County Local Government 
Representative, to the Region D Development Corporation Board. 
 
Consideration of the remaining three appointments was tabled to allow time to verify eligibility 
of representation. 
 
Mr. Brian Crutchfield has served as the Community Organization Representative and remains 
eligible through his service as a member of the Watauga County Community Foundation and the 
Rotary Club.  
 
Mr. Jim Furman has served as the Business Organization Representative and remains eligible as 
a local business owner.  Mr. Furman has expressed interest in continuing to serve if so appointed.  
 
Mr. Brian Riggins has served as the Private Lending Institution Representative and remains 
eligible as a resident of Watauga County who works for a lending institution, First Citizens 
Bank.  Mr. Riggins works at the Bank in Wilkes County; however, he has expressed interest in 
continuing to represent Watauga County on the Development Corporation Board if so appointed. 
 
Second readings have been held for the three terms listed above; therefore, appointments may be 
made or additional nominations may be considered. 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

231



Blank Page 
 
 

080712 BCC Meeting

232



080712 BCC Meeting

233



080712 BCC Meeting

234



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D. Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) 105th Annual Conference 
is scheduled for August 16-18, 2012, in Wake County.  If you plan to attend, please inform Anita 
so that she may RSVP on your behalf. 
 
The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday, September 
7, 2012, at Linville Ridge.  If you wish to attend, please notify Anita prior to August 24 so she 
may assist in the registration. 
 
An Interlocal Governmental Retreat has been scheduled for Thursday, September 13, 2012, at 
5:00 P.M.  The location of the meeting will be announced at a future meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

080712 BCC Meeting

235



080712 BCC Meeting

236



080712 BCC Meeting

237



080712 BCC Meeting

238



080712 BCC Meeting

239



080712 BCC Meeting

240



080712 BCC Meeting

241



080712 BCC Meeting

242



080712 BCC Meeting

243



080712 BCC Meeting

244



080712 BCC Meeting

245



080712 BCC Meeting

246



080712 BCC Meeting

247



080712 BCC Meeting

248



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 10: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 

080712 BCC Meeting

249


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes:
	Approval of the August 7, 2012 Agenda
	Proposed Amendments to the Watauga County Emergency Operations Plan
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Award of Architectural Services for Aquatic Center Repair Project
	B.  Change Order Request for Demolition of the Old High School

	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases
	C.  Annual Settlement of Tax Collector
	D.  Oath to Collect Taxes

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Clarification of EMS Advisory Committee Appointments
	B.  Appointment of Voting Delegate at the NCACC Annual Conference
	C.  Boards and Commissions
	D.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	080712 Agenda.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




